AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD TO IDENTIFY INFORMED TRADERS IN THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF THAILAND

Mr. Natthaphong Kittisumeta



บทคัดย่อและแฟ้มข้อมูลฉบับเต็มของวิทยานิพนธ์ตั้งแต่ปีการศึกษา 2554 ที่ให้บริการในคลังปัญญาจุหาฯ (CUIR) เป็นแฟ้มข้อมูลของนิสิตเจ้าของวิทยานิพนธ์ ที่ส่งผ่านทางบัณฑิตวิทยาลัย

The abstract and full text of theses from the academic year 2011 in Chulalongkorn University Intellectual Repository (CUIR)

are the thesis authors' files submitted through the University Graduate School.

A Thesis Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science Program in Finance Department of Banking and Finance Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy Chulalongkorn University Academic Year 2014 Copyright of Chulalongkorn University วิธีทางเลือกในการบ่งชี้ตัวนักลงทุนผู้มีข้อมูลในตลาดหลักทรัพย์แห่งประเทศไทย



วิทยานิพนธ์นี้เป็นส่วนหนึ่งของการศึกษาตามหลักสูตรปริญญาวิทยาศาสตรมหาบัณฑิต สาขาวิชาการเงิน ภาควิชาการธนาคารและการเงิน คณะพาณิชยศาสตร์และการบัญชี จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย ปีการศึกษา 2557 ลิขสิทธิ์ของจุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

Thesis Title	AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD TO IDENTIFY					
	INFORMED TRADERS IN THE STOCK					
	EXCHANGE OF THAILAND					
Ву	Mr. Natthaphong Kittisumeta					
Field of Study	Finance					
Thesis Advisor	Nattawut Jenwittayaroje, Ph.D.					

Accepted by the Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Master's Degree

> _____Dean of the Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy (Associate Professor Pasu Decharin, Ph.D.)

THESIS COMMITTEE	
	Chairman
(Anant Chiarawongse, Ph.D.)	
	Thesis Advisor
(Nattawut Jenwittayaroje, Ph.D.)	
	Examiner
(Tanakorn Likitapiwat, Ph.D.)	
	External Examiner
(Charnwut Roongsangmanoon, Ph.D.)	

ณัฐพงศ์ กิตติสุเมธา : วิธีทางเลือกในการบ่งชี้ด้วนักลงทุนผู้มีข้อมูลในตลาดหลักทรัพย์แห่งประเทศไทย (AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD TO IDENTIFY INFORMED TRADERS IN THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF THAILAND) อ.ที่ปรึกษาวิทยานิพนธ์หลัก: อ. คร. ณัฐ วุฒิ เจนวิทยาโรจน์, 45 หน้า.

การศึกษานี้ใช้ผลการศึกษาของ Bloomfield, O'Hara, and Saar (2005) เป็นวิธีทางเลือกในการ บ่งชี้ตัวนักลงทุนผู้มีข้อมูลและ ไม่มีข้อมูลในตลาดหลักทรัพย์แห่งประเทศไทย ผลการศึกษาจากข้อมูลปี 2552 พบว่านัก ลงทุนทั้ง 4 ประเภทในตลาดหลักทรัพย์แห่งประเทศไทยมีพฤติกรรมที่คล้ายกับนักลงทุนผู้ไม่มีข้อมูล อย่างไรก็ตามการศึกษา เพิ่มเติมพบว่านักลงทุนประเภทบัญชีบริษัทหลักทรัพย์และนักลงทุนสถาบันมีสัดส่วนของนักลงทุนผู้ไม่มีข้อมูลด่ำกว่านักลงทุน ต่างประเทศ นอกจากนี้ผลการศึกษาดังกล่าวยังกงสอดกล้องกันในทุกวิธีการกำนวณอัตราส่วนของกำสั่งซื้อขายแบบกำหนด ราคาและในทุกสภาวะตลาด



CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

ภาควิชา การธนาคารและการเงิน สาขาวิชา การเงิน ปีการศึกษา 2557

ถายมือชื่อนิสิต
ลายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาหลัก

5582869426 : MAJOR FINANCE KEYWORDS: LIMIT ORDER / MARKET ORDER / INFORMED TRADER / TIME OF DAY / THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF THAILAND NATTHAPHONG KITTISUMETA: AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD TO IDENTIFY INFORMED TRADERS IN THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF

IDENTIFY INFORMED TRADERS IN THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF THAILAND. ADVISOR: NATTAWUT JENWITTAYAROJE, Ph.D., 45 pp.

This study uses the experimental findings of Bloomfield, O'Hara, and Saar (2005) as an alternative method to identify informed and uninformed traders in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Based on a sample period from 2009, the results show that all four investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand appear to be dominated by uninformed traders. Further analyses, however, indicate that proprietary traders and institutional investors have relatively lower proportions of uninformed traders than foreign investors do. The robustness tests show that our main results are generally unchanged, regardless of the methods used to calculate limit order submission rates and stock market conditions.



Department:Banking and FinanceField of Study:FinanceAcademic Year:2014

Student's Signature	
Advisor's Signature	

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This thesis would not have been completed without helpful advices from my thesis advisor, Nattawut Jenwittayaroje, PhD. I am grateful to Anant Chiarawongse, PhD.,Tanakorn Likitapiwat, PhD., Charnwut Roongsangmanoon, Ph.D., and participants at the 14th International Convention of the East Asian Economic Association for their constructive comments and suggestions. I am also appreciative to the Stock Exchange of Thailand for the support of the necessary data. In addition, I would like to thank my parents for their support, all lecturers for their kindness, all classmates for our friendship, and all MSF staffs for their help. I am responsible for all errors in this thesis.



CONTENTS

Pa	.ge
THAI ABSTRACTiv	
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS vi	
CONTENTSvii	
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION	
CHAPTER 2 LITERATURE REVIEW AND HYPOTHESES	
2.1. Literature Review	
2.2. Research Hypotheses	
CHAPTER 3 DATA AND METHODOLOGY17	
3.1. Data	
3.2. Methodology	
CHAPTER 4 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	
4.1. Results25	
4.2. Discussion	
CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSIONS	
REFERENCES	
VITAli	

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 : Percentage of limit orders used by each investor type
Table 2 : Percentage change of the SET100 Index during each study period24
Table 3 : Descriptive statistics of the limit order submission rate
Table 4 : Comparison between the limit order submission rates during the firsthour and during the last hour of the trading day of each investor type using thedata from 2009
Table 5 : Comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first hour andduring the last hour of the trading day between each pair of investor types usingthe data from 2009
Table 6 : Comparison between the limit order submission rates of high and lowvalue stocks of each investor type using the data from 2009
Table 7 : Comparison between the limit order submission rates during the first 30minutes and during the last 30 minutes of the trading day and the comparisonbetween the limit order submission rates during the first half and during thesecond half of the trading day of each investor type using the data from 2009 34
Table 8 : Comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first 30minutes and during the last 30 minutes of the trading day and the comparison ofthe limit order submission rates during the first half and during the second half ofthe trading day between each pair of investor types using the data from 2009 35
Table 9 : Comparison between the limit order submission rates during the firsthour and during the last hour of the trading day of each investor type using thedata from 2005 - 2008
Table 10 : Comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first hour andduring the last hour of the trading day between each pair of investor types usingthe data from 2005 - 2008
Table 11 : Comparison between the limit order submission rates of high and lowvalue stocks of each investor type using the data from 2005 – 2008

Page

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1. Problem Review and Motivation

In economics, the concept of information asymmetry has been studied extensively for a long time.¹ By invalidating one of the key assumptions in the neoclassical economics, information asymmetry provides a room for the reexamination of many economic theories. Many seminal studies show that the when one party to the transaction has more or better relevant information than the other parties, the economic problems become more complicated than they used to be. Initially, the concept of information asymmetry is not widely accepted.² The study of the auction markets in Vickrey (1961) is among the first studies that directly emphasize the asymmetry has been officially introduced to the economic society by Akerlof (1970). Beginning with the case of an automobile market in 1970, nowadays, the concept of information asymmetry has been studied in most aspects of the markets.

The stock market is no exception. The situation that some traders have the relevant information that the others do not have is plausible. Given that having such information makes them able to earn abnormal returns, the efficient market hypothesis is at least partially ruined. So, it is imperative for all stakeholders to find out how to

¹ See Stiglitz (1987) and Stiglitz (2000) for the detail of the development.

² For more information, see Stiglitz (2000).

mitigate the problem and prevent the failure of the market which is the worst case scenario that could occur when the asymmetry is severe.³

To study the problem of information asymmetry in the stock market, three common branches of research methodology are used. Researchers search for the solutions by using theoretical models, empirical data, and laboratory experiments.

In the theoretical framework, setting some assumptions about the characteristics of the market and market participants seems to be unavoidable. As a result, the conclusions of these theoretical models are stylized. Supporting empirical evidence is required to make them more reliable. The classical examples of the studies of the information asymmetry are Glosten (1994) and Seppi (1997). They assume that the use of market orders is the result from the rational optimization of informed traders and informed traders are the only trader type who uses market orders while uninformed traders are assumed to be patient and use only limit orders because they are required to be the trading counterparts and the source of liquidity for informed traders. In these studies, the order choices of traders are assumed explicitly. However, there are some studies that find traders' order choices by setting the assumptions about the market. Harris (1998), for example, finds that the duration of private information is the primary determinant of informed traders' order choices as they tend to use more limit orders when their information is considered to be long-lived and use more market orders when

³ For more information, see Akerlof (1970) and Grossman and Stiglitz (1980).

their information is considered to be short-lived. However, his model ignores the price impact of trades making it applicable for only small size trades.⁴

Beside theoretical studies, many researchers like to use empirical data to study the same research questions. One of the objectives of these studies is to provide supporting or opposing evidence to related theoretical studies. Unfortunately, empirical researchers cannot identify informed and uninformed traders explicitly since there is no label of informed and uninformed traders attached to the empirical data. Therefore, researchers have to use some proxies to represent the informativeness of traders.

One of the proxies that are widely used is the trading performance. When this proxy is used, the informativeness of traders is represented by their trading performances. Traders whose performances are better will be classified as informed traders.⁵

For a comparative purpose, this proxy requires all traders to have the same investment holding period. This necessary assumption seems to be restrictive because the holding period of one trader is independent of other traders in the actual market. Setting one arbitrary holding period for all traders could lead to invalid conclusions.

Moreover, the results from this proxy are sometimes inconclusive. For example, Taechapiroontong and Suecharoenkit (2011) find that foreign investors have worse trade price performance than domestic investors in the Stock Exchange of Thailand

⁴ For more information, see Harris (1998, pp. 2, 62).

⁵ For example, see Grinblatt and Keloharju (2000), Kamesaka et al. (2003), Choe et al. (2005), Dvorak (2005), and Froot and Ramadorai (2008).

(SET) during the 1999 - 2004 period while Boonvorachote and Panyawattananon (2012) find the opposite result in the same market but with the different study period. His study is conducted using the data during the 2005 - 2010 periods. In addition, Phansatan et al. (2012) use 6 different holding periods to compute the trading performance of all trader types in SET and find that the result of one holding period is opposite to the results from other holding periods.

Apart from employing theoretical models and empirical data, an experimental design is another branch of the research methodology that is commonly used when dealing with complex problems. Bloomfield and Anderson (2010) mention that laboratory experiments can be used to avoid some common problems in theoretical and empirical studies such as the self-selection problem, the omitted variables, and the unobserved variables.

By utilizing experimental markets, Bloomfield et al. (2005) find that time of the trading period and value of private information are two factors which can be used to classify informed and uninformed traders.

By monitoring the order strategies of traders in simulated markets, Bloomfield et al. (2005) observe that trading strategies of both trader types change over time. During the beginning of the trading period, informed traders trade mainly via market orders because they want to capitalize on their private information by picking-off mispriced limit orders on the limit order book. As the trading progresses, these market orders move the security price towards its true value. When the true value of the security lies within the bid-ask spreads, informed traders are unable to profit from market orders anymore. Consequently, they continue to trade by using limit orders and earn the bidask spreads. Uninformed traders who are required by the trading rule to trade at least a specific number of shares before the trading period is over, on the other hand, begin to trade via limit orders since they do not wish to pay the bid-ask spreads. However, as time progresses, they gradually change to use more market orders to meet their trading targets.

Beside the time of the trading period, Bloomfield et al. (2005) find that the value of information is another key determinant in the trading strategy of informed traders. When trading the security that has high value of information, informed traders are found to submit more market orders than they do when trading the security that has low value of information. This trading pattern is not found in the trading of uninformed traders.

There are some empirical studies that provide supporting evidence to the findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005). Anand et al. (2005) study the trading strategies of institutional investors and individual investors in the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) from November 1990 to January 1991. In their study, institutional investors are assumed to be informed traders while individual investors are assumed to be uninformed traders. The result shows that the trading performances of both market and limit orders submitted by institutional traders are better during the first half of the day than during the second half of the day. This result indicates that the use of market and limit orders by institutional traders during the first half of the day comes from their informational advantages while the use of limit orders during the second half of the day comes from the bid-ask spreads. Kaniel and Liu (2006) develop a model to study the use of market and limit orders by informed traders. Consistent with Bloomfield et al. (2005), they find that

informed traders consider the value of their private information when they design their order strategies. The model shows that informed traders tend to use more market orders when the difference between the current price and the true value of the security is large and turn to use more limit orders when the difference is smaller. Ellul et al. (2007) study the order choices of traders in NYSE and find that traders are more likely to use limit orders towards the end of the trading day. Duong et al. (2009) study the order aggressiveness of institutional and individual investors in the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX). Institutional investors are found to use more aggressive during the first hour of the trading day while individual investors are found to use less aggressive orders during the beginning and switch to use more aggressive orders during the end of the trading day.

1.2. Statement of the Problem

Three problems have been addressed in the previous section. Firstly, there are some limitations on the use of trading performance as the proxy for the informativeness of traders, e.g., traders do not have the same investment holding period in general. Secondly, the results from prior studies on the trading performance of traders in the Stock Exchange of Thailand are inconsistent, i.e., they are varied with study periods and investment holding periods. Consequently, the broad conclusion cannot be reached. Lastly, despite having some supporting evidence, the experimental findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005) have never been used to classify informed and uninformed traders in an actual stock market.

1.3. Objective of the study

This study is intended to promote the experimental findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005) as an alternative method to identify informed and uninformed traders in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Advantages and disadvantages of this alternative method are supposed to be discussed.

1.4. Scope of the Study

The data used throughout this study are provided by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Like the data from most financial markets, traders' identification numbers are excluded. As a consequence, the study in an individual level is not attainable. The trading strategies of traders will be investigated by investor types. In SET, there are 4 investor types, i.e., foreign investors, institutional investors, individual investors, and proprietary traders. Since foreign investors and institutional investors, in general, have restrictions on trading on low-liquidity and small-market capitalization stocks. Hence, this study will focus only on stocks that have sufficient liquidity and large-market capitalization.

1.5. Contributions

The alternative method to identify informed and uninformed traders has been utilized in this study. The use of limit and market orders by 4 investor types has been investigated. The strengths and limitations of this alternative method have been discussed. Empirical evidence has been added to the study of informed and uninformed traders in the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

1.6. Organization of the study

There are 5 chapters in this study. The next chapter provides a review of relevant literature. Chapter 3 explains the data and methodology. Chapter 4 presents the results. The conclusions are presented in the last chapter.



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

CHAPTER 2 LITERATURE REVIEW AND HYPOTHESES

2.1. Literature Review

2.1.1. Theoretical Studies of Traders' Order Choice

To study the problem of information asymmetry in the stock markets, many researchers focus their studies on the trading strategies of informed and uninformed traders. They realize that an understanding of the trading strategies of both informed and uninformed traders will contribute to an understanding of the market mechanism in which there is an information asymmetry problem.

In a theoretical framework, researchers conduct various theoretical models to study various aspects of the problem. By setting assumptions about trading determinants of informed and uninformed traders and the market as a whole, they come up with various explanations about the trading strategies of both trader types and how the market characteristics affect these strategies. However, the complete understanding about how informed and uninformed traders trade has not been reached due to the complexity of the market. Numerous theoretical studies use restrictive assumptions to make their models computable while the others completely ignore the problem of information asymmetry. For example, Cohen et al. (1981) study the trade-off between the execution certainty of market orders and a better price but with execution uncertainty of limit orders. Their gravitational pull model shows that the benefit of the better price provided by limit orders decreases when the spreads are narrower, making more investors to prefer the execution certainty provided by market orders. However, as more investors turn to use market orders, the spreads become wider and the benefit of the better price provided by limit orders is higher, making investors to use more limit orders. To summarize, this model suggests that investors consider the relative costs of price improvement and execution risk when they design their trading strategies.

Apart from the studies that do not consider the issue of information asymmetry at all, there are some studies that consider it with restrictive assumptions. Glosten (1994) studies the competitiveness of an electronic limit order book system relative to competing markets. The results show that the electronic limit order book system is a competent system and has a potential to be a center of significant trading volume. In his model, market orders are assumed to be the result of rational optimization of informed traders, in other words, informed traders are assumed to be the only type of traders who use market orders. On the other hand, patient traders are the ones who keep submitting limit orders to the market are the source of liquidity. Seppi (1997) studies the significance of public limit orders by using the same assumptions that informed traders always use market orders while uninformed traders always use limit orders. These restrictive assumptions about the order choice of informed and uninformed traders make the results from these studies to be stylized.

Later, Harris (1998) allows traders in his model to use both limit and market orders. He finds that the duration of private information is the primary determinant of informed traders' order choices as they tend to use more limit orders when their information is considered to be long-lived and use more market orders when their information is considered to be short-lived. However, he does not consider the price impact in his model. As a result, his findings are applicable for only small size trades which have a small price impact.

2.1.2. Empirical Studies with the Trading Performance Method

Since researchers cannot identify informed and uninformed traders explicitly in actual stock markets, they have to use some proxies to represent the informativeness of traders. The trading performance of the traders is one of the proxies that are commonly used. This proxy is based on the important assumption that traders who finish the trading period with higher profits are the ones who are better informed and traders who finish the trading period with lower profits or higher losses are the ones who are worse informed.

In the studies of the trading performance of foreign investors, the results show that foreign investors have better trading performances than domestic investors in many markets. For example, Froot and Ramadorai (2008) study the trading performances of investors in 25 countries and find that foreign investors outperformed domestic investors in many markets especially in emerging markets. Grinblatt and Keloharju (2000) find that foreign investors in Finland have better trading performances than domestic individual investors. Kamesaka et al. (2003) find that foreign investors in Japan also have better trading performances than domestic individual investors. While Bae et al. (2006) find that foreign investors in Japan have good market timing abilities resulting in good trading performances.

Prior studies find that individual investors are uninformed traders most of the time. For example, Barber and Odean (2000) calculate the trading performances of individual investors in the U.S. and compare them to various benchmarks. The results show that individual investors have relatively poor trading performances. Barber et al. (2009) study the trading performances of individual investors in Taiwan and also find

that individual investors have worse trading performances than other investor types. Kamesaka et al. (2003) find that individual investors in Japan have the worst trading performances. However, there are some studies that find the opposite, for example, see Choe et al. (2005) and Dvorak (2005).

Institutional investors and proprietary traders are found to be informed traders in many studies. Cohen et al. (2002) and Barber et al. (2009) find that institutional investors have better trading performances than individual investors in the U.S. and Taiwan, respectively. Kamesaka et al. (2003) find that institutional investors and securities firms in Japan outperform individual investors during 1980 – 1997.

2.1.3. Related Experimental Studies

Bloomfield and Anderson (2010) argue that the experimental method can be used to avoid some common problems in the theoretical and empirical studies such as the self-selection problem, the omitted variables, and the unobserved variables. By relaxing some restrictive assumptions in the theoretical studies, this method allows researchers to find the results in the more general case. This method is appropriate for studying the problem that involves the human decision making under uncertainty which is difficult to be solved theoretically.

In the experimental study of Bloomfield et al. (2005), the differences between the trading strategies of informed and uninformed traders have been observed. The result shows that the trading strategies of both informed and uninformed traders change over time. At the beginning, informed traders use market orders to capitalize from their private information. When the trading period is passing by, these orders move the stock price towards its true value. When the stock price is close to its true value, market orders are not worth using anymore. Informed traders then switch to use limit orders to earn the spreads. Uninformed traders or liquidity traders, on the other hand, use limit orders at the beginning of the trading period because of their information disadvantages. However, when the trading period is passing by, they gradually change to use more market orders because they have to meet their target before the trading period is over. Bloomfield et al. (2005) suggest that the market-making role of informed traders come from the information advantages they have over uninformed traders. In addition, the result shows that informed traders trade the stocks that have high value of information and the stocks that have low value of information differently. The value of information is calculated by the difference between the closing price of the stock and the expected value of the stock. In this experimental market, the stock closing price is told to informed traders before the trading period starts while the expected value of the stock is fixed at 25 laboratory dollars. So, the value of the private information that informed traders have is the difference between the closing price of the stock and 25. The result shows that informed traders use more market orders when they trade the stocks that have high value of information and use more limit orders when they trade the stocks that have low value of information. For uninformed traders, the result shows that there is no significant difference in their trading strategies when they trade the stock with different value of information.

2.1.4. Supporting Empirical Studies

Anand et al. (2005) study the order strategies of traders by using the unique data of stocks in the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) during November 1990 – January 1991. They assume that institutional traders are informed traders while individual traders are uninformed traders. The results show that institutional traders use more limit orders than do individual traders and the limit orders submitted by institutional traders perform better than those submitted by individual traders which is consistent with the findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005). Moreover, institutions' limit orders perform better in the morning than the afternoon indicates that they are more likely to be information motivated in the morning and be on the liquidity purpose in the afternoon. Kaniel and Liu (2006) develop a model to study the use of market and limit orders by informed traders. Consistent with Bloomfield et al. (2005), they find that informed traders consider the value of their private information when they design their order strategies. The model shows that informed traders tend to use more market orders when the difference between the current price and the true value of the security is large and turn to use more limit orders when the difference is smaller. Ellul et al. (2007) study the trader order choices by using the data of 148 sample stocks from NYSE during the week of April 30 – May 4, 2001. They find that traders in NYSE tend to use more limit orders towards the end of the trading day. Duong et al. (2009) study the order aggressiveness of institutional and individual investors in the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) during August 1 – November 25, 2005. The results show that institutional investors use more aggressive orders than individual investors in the first hour of the trading day while individual investors use more aggressive orders towards the end of the trading day.

2.2. Research Hypotheses

Bloomfield et al. (2005) find that informed traders use less limit orders during the beginning of the trading period than during the end of the trading period while uninformed traders trade in the other way around by using more limit orders during the beginning of the trading period than during the end of the trading. This finding is supported by some supporting evidence such as Anand et al. (2005) and Duong et al. (2009). According to the results from prior studies, e.g., Barber and Odean (2000), Grinblatt and Keloharju (2000), Kamesaka et al. (2003), Bae et al. (2006) and Barber et al. (2009), foreign investors, proprietary traders and institutional investors are found to have better trading performance than individual investors. So, this study hypothesizes that foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors in the Stock Exchange of Thailand trade like informed traders and hypothesizes that individual investors trade like uninformed traders in the study of Bloomfield et al. (2005).

Hypothesis 1.1: Foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors use less limit orders during the beginning of the trading period than during the end of the trading period while individual investors use more limit orders during the beginning of the trading period than during the end of the trading period.

The results of Bloomfield et al. (2005) also show that informed traders use less limit orders than uninformed traders during the beginning of the trading period and use more limit orders than uninformed traders during the end of the trading period. In this study, an investor type that uses less limit orders than other investor types during the beginning of the trading period and uses more limit orders than other investor types during the end of the trading period will be classified as an informed investor type while an investor type that uses more limit orders than other investor types during the beginning of the trading period and uses less limit orders than other investor types during the beginning of the trading period and uses less limit orders than other investor types during the beginning of the trading period and uses less limit orders than other investor types during the end of the trading period will be classified as an uninformed investor type. According to the results from prior studies, e.g., Barber and Odean (2000), Grinblatt and Keloharju (2000), Froot and Ramadorai (2008), and Barber et al. (2009), foreign investors are found to have better trading performance than other investor types in the markets while individual investors are found to have worse trading performance than other investor types in the markets. So, this study hypothesizes that foreign investors in the Stock Exchange of Thailand trade like informed traders and individual investors trade like uninformed traders in the study of Bloomfield et al. (2005).

Hypothesis 1.2: Foreign investors use less limit orders than other investor types during the beginning of the trading period and use more limit orders than other investor types during the end of the trading period while individual investors use more limit orders than other investor types during the beginning of the trading period and use less limit orders than other investor types during the end of the trading period.

According to the study of Bloomfield et al. (2005), the value of information is another factor that can be used to classify informed and uninformed traders. The results show that informed traders use less limit orders when they trade stocks that have high value of information and use more limit orders when they trade stocks that have low value of information. Again, this study hypothesizes that foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors trade like informed traders in the study of Bloomfield et al. (2005).

Hypothesis 2: Foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors use less limit orders when they trade stocks that have high value of information and use more limit orders when they trade stocks that have low value of information.

CHAPTER 3 DATA AND METHODOLOGY

3.1. Data

This study uses the intraday data of 100 stocks listed in the SET100 Index from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009. The dataset is provided for an academic purpose by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. This study period is the latest period that has complete data. Sample stocks are used in the analyses to ensure sufficient liquidity and the participation of all investor types. At the beginning of the study period, the SET100 Index is 671.35 points. The index goes up to be 1,120.26 points at the end of the period. It is accounted for 66.87% increase during the study period. This study finds that there is a total of 34,693,903 orders submitted during the study period. These submitted orders are equal to 1,535,329,667,265 shares. According to Table 1, individual investors are the biggest investor type in the market both in term of submitted orders and shares. Their submission is accounted for 87.83% of the total submitted orders and 82.84% of the total submitted shares. Foreign investors are in the second place both in term of submitted orders and shares. Their submission is accounted for 7.16% of the total submitted orders and 8.17% of the total submitted shares. It was found that institutional investors submit more orders than proprietary traders, but their submitted orders are accounted for less shares. So, it can be concluded that, on average, the order size of institutional investors is smaller than the order size of proprietary traders.

U		
Investor Type	% of Total Orders	% of Total Shares
Foreign Investors	7.16%	8.17%
Proprietary Traders	1.75%	5.55%
Institutional Investors	3.26%	3.44%
Individual Investors	87.83%	82.84%

Table 1: Percentage of limit orders used by each investor type

Note: This table reports the order submission of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand as a percentage of the total submitted orders and a percentage of the total submitted shares.

3.2. Methodology

3.2.1. Limit order submission rate

According to Bloomfield et al. (2005), the order preference of each investor type is measured by a limit order submission rate which is the proportion of the submitted limit orders to all submitted orders.

 $Limit order submission rate = \frac{no. of submitted limit orders}{no. of tatal submitted orders}$

This definition of the limit order submission rate is suitable for the experimental markets since the order size is controlled, i.e., each order in the experimental study is equal to 1 share. However, in actual markets, the order size is not controlled. If this fact is not taken into account, an order of 100 shares and an order of 1,000,000 shares will be treated indifferently.

To overcome the order size problem, the number of shares is used to calculate the limit order submission rate instead of the number of orders.

 $Limit order \ submission \ rate = \frac{no. of \ shares \ submitted \ via \ limit \ orders}{no. of \ total \ submitted \ shares}$

However, there is another difference between experimental markets and actual stock markets. In experimental markets, there is just one stock traded in each market. The stock price is restricted to be between 0 and 50 laboratory dollars. In actual stock markets, there are multiple stocks traded in the markets. In this study, there are 100 sample stocks. Their prices and impacts on the market are different. If this fact is overlooked, a share of 1 THB and a share of 300 THB will be treated indifferently.

To overcome this problem, the limit order submission rate is calculated for each sample stock by using the number of shares. Then, the overall limit order submission rate is calculated based on an average of the limit order submission rate of each sample stock.

 $Limit order \ submission \ rate = \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{100} limit \ order \ submission \ rate_{stock \ i}}{100}$

In this study, the limit order submission rate will be obtained by all three methods. The limit order submission rate calculated from the number of shares, by averaging the limit order submission rate of each sample stock, will be referred as Methodology 1. The limit order submission rate calculated from the number of shares, by ignoring the difference in sample stocks' prices, will be referred as Methodology 2. And the limit order submission rate calculated from the number of orders will be referred as Methodology 3.

3.2.2. Time of the day effect

According to Hypothesis 1.1 and Hypothesis 1.2, the informativeness of each investor type will be decided by the limit order submission rates of that investor type

during the beginning and during the end of the trading period. Initially, this study sets the duration of the beginning of the trading period and the duration of the end of the trading period to be equal to 1 hour.⁶ After the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day are calculated, Hypothesis 1.1 and Hypothesis 1.2 are tested using the t-test statistics.

In Hypothesis 1.1, foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors are hypothesized to trade like informed traders while individual investors are hypothesized to trade like uninformed traders in the experimental study. So, foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors are expected to use less limit orders during the first hour of the trading day than during the last hour of the trading day while individual investors are expected to use more limit orders during the first hour of the last hour of the trading day. If this hypothesis is correct, the result should be as follows.

- The limit order submission rates of foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors during the first hour of the trading day are lower than their limit order submission rates during the last hour of the trading day.
- The limit order submission rates of individual investors during the first hour of the trading day are higher than their limit order submission rates during the last hour of the trading day.

In Hypothesis 1.2, foreign investors are hypothesized to trade like informed traders while individual investors are hypothesized to trade like uninformed traders in

⁶ Duong et al. (2009) use the same duration for their study of traders' order aggressiveness.

the experimental study. So, foreign investors are expected to use less limit orders than other investor types during the first hour of the trading day and use more limit orders than other investor types during the last hour of the trading day. Individual investors, on the other hand, are expected to use more limit orders than other investor types during the first hour of the trading day and use less limit orders than other investor types during the last hour of the trading day. If this hypothesis is correct, the result should be as follows.

- Foreign investors have lower limit order submission rates than other investor types during the first hour of the trading day and have higher limit order submission rates than other investor types during the last hour of the trading day.
- Individual investors have higher limit order submission rates than other investor types during the first hour of the trading day and have lower limit order submission rates than other investor types during the last hour of the trading day.

3.2.3. The value of information effect

According to Hypothesis 2, foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors are hypothesized to trade like informed traders in the experimental study. They are expected to use less limit orders when they trade stocks that have high value of information and use more limit orders when they trade stocks that have low value of information. In the study of Bloomfield et al. (2005), all traders know that the expected final price of the stock is fixed at 25 laboratory dollars. The value of information is defined as the difference between the expected final price and

the final price of the stock. Informed traders are the only trader type who knows the final price of the stock. So, they are the only trader type who knows the value of information. In actual stock markets, the expected final price of each sample stock is different from one another. To imitate the experimental setting, the opening prices of all sample stocks are assumed to be their expected final prices. As a result, the value of information of each sample stock is equal to the difference between its opening price and its closing price. To compare the value of information of different sample stocks, the value of information of each sample stock is calculated in term of a percentage.

$$Value of information_{stock i} = \left| \frac{closing \ price_i - opening \ price_i}{opening \ price_i} \right|$$

To classify high and low value stocks, 30 sample stocks that have the highest values of information are considered as high value stocks while 30 sample stocks that have the lowest values of information are considered as low value stocks.

If this hypothesis is correct, the result should be as follows.

- The limit order submission rates of foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors when they trade high value stocks are lower than the limit order submission rates when they trade low value stocks.

3.2.4. Robustness Tests

In an empirical study, there is a chance that the conclusion will be changed when there is an adjustment for the proxy used, e.g., when the proxy is calculated by the different formula. In addition, results from many studies are found to be contrary when they are studied in the different market conditions. In this study, two robustness tests will be conducted to examine the robustness of the results.

In the first robustness test, the methodology will be replicated using the durations of 30 minutes and half a trading day instead of the duration of 1 hour in the calculation of the limit order submission rates.⁷ As a result, the first 30-minute and the last 30-minute limit order submission rates will be used to identify informed and uninformed traders in Robustness Test 1.1 while the limit order submission rates during the first half and during the second half of the trading day will be used in Robustness Test 1.2.

In the second robustness test, the methodology will be replicated using three continuous study periods that represent three different market conditions as can be seen in Table 2. In Robustness Test 2.1, the study period of 30 April 2005 – 31 December 2006, this study will analyze the results in the sideway market condition. The SET100 Index goes up by 3.34% during this period. In Robustness Test 2.2, the study period of 1 January 2007 – 31 December 2007, this study will examine another uptrend market condition in which the index goes up by 31.17%. And in Robustness Test 2.3, the study

⁷ The duration of half a day is similar to the study of Anand et al. (2005), who divide the trading hour of NYSE in half to investigate the difference in the performance of submitted orders.

period of 1 January 2008 - 31 December 2008, this study will investigate the downtrend market condition in which the SET100 Index drops more than half during the period.

 U	6	<u> </u>	
Study Period	At the Beginning Index	At the End Index	% Change
2005-2006 1000		1033.38	3.34%
2007	1033.38	1355.47	31.17%
2008	1355.47	671.35	-50.47%
2009	671.35	1120.26	66.87%

Table 2: Percentage change of the SET100 Index during each study period

Note: This table reports the SET100 Index at the beginning, at the end, and the percentage change in each study period.



, Chulalongkorn University

CHAPTER 4 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

4.1. Results

4.1.1. Descriptive Statistics of the Limit Order Submission Rates

The descriptive statistics of the limit order submission rates calculated by three different methods are presented in Table 3. Individual investors are found to have the highest limit order submission rate in spite of the methodology used. The result shows that the limit order submission rates calculated by Methodology 1 have higher standard deviations than Methodology 2 and 3.

Investor Type	Min	Q1	Mean	Median	Q3	Max	S.D.
Panel A: Methodology 1							
Foreign Investor	55.3%	63.9%	68.0%	67.6%	70.7%	90.8%	6.0%
Proprietary Traders	18.0%	52.5%	58.6%	58.9%	64.2%	84.0%	8.8%
Institutional Investors	36.6%	60.7%	64.1%	64.3%	68.1%	87.5%	7.3%
Individual Investors	65.2%	74.4%	77.5%	77.4%	79.8%	95.2%	5.0%
Panel B: Methodology 2	-01			-			
Foreign Investor	31.5%	65.5%	68.5%	68.8%	71.7%	91.7%	5.2%
Proprietary Traders	43.6%	63.9%	66.7%	67.1%	69.8%	81.2%	5.0%
Institutional Investors	46.6%	58.8%	62.7%	62.4%	66.5%	78.6%	5.7%
Individual Investors	69.7%	77.6%	80.7%	80.8%	83.7%	91.6%	4.2%
Panel C: Methodology 3							
Foreign Investor	59.7%	68.9%	70.7%	71.2%	72.8%	81.7%	3.1%
Proprietary Traders	59.2%	65.7%	67.6%	67.5%	69.5%	78.2%	2.8%
Institutional Investors	57.5%	74.4%	75.8%	76.1%	77.5%	83.3%	2.8%
Individual Investors	72.7%	78.3%	79.8%	79.9%	81.3%	86.5%	2.2%

Table 3: Descriptive statistics of the limit order submission rate

Note: This table reports the descriptive statistics of the limit order submission rates. Methodology 1 refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Methodology 2 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rate from the number of submitted shares across all sample stocks. And Methodology 3 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rate of submitted orders across all sample stocks.

4.1.2. Time of the Day Effect

When the limit order submission rate during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day are compared for all investor types. Table 4 shows that the results from all methods are consistent. The limit order submission rates during the first hour of all investor types are higher than their limit order submission rates during the last hour of the trading day. According to Hypothesis 1.1, the results oppose the hypothesis about foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors because they do not use less limit orders during the first hour of the trading day than during the last hour of the trading day. However, the results support the hypothesis about individual investors since they use more limit orders during the first hour of the trading day than during the last hour of the trading day. The trading pattern of all investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand is similar to the trading pattern of uninformed traders in the experimental study of Bloomfield et al. (2005).

> จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

Investor Type	First Hour	Last Hour	First Hour - Last Hour
Panel A: Methodology 1			
Foreign Investor	78.4%	53.9%	24.5%**
Proprietary Traders	66.1%	58.2%	7.9%**
Institutional Investors	68.8%	59.1%	9.7%**
Individual Investors	87.0%	60.1%	26.9%**
Panel B: Methodology 2			
Foreign Investor	81.4%	55.3%	26.1%**
Proprietary Traders	73.7%	63.0%	10.7%**
Institutional Investors	67.2%	60.5%	6.7%**
Individual Investors	89.1%	64.9%	24.2%**
Panel C: Methodology 3		1.a.	
Foreign Investor	80.6%	58.4%	22.2%**
Proprietary Traders	73.3%	62.3%	11.0%**
Institutional Investors	82.6%	68.1%	14.5%**
Individual Investors	87.2%	65.5%	21.7%**

Table 4: Comparison between the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of each investor type using the data from 2009

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Methodology 1 refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Methodology 2 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rate from the number of submitted shares across all sample stocks. And Methodology 3 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rate of submitted orders across all sample stocks. The intraday data from 2009 are used in the calculation. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day is computed using the t-statistics.

When the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day are compared between investor types. According to the findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005), informed traders are found to have lower limit order submission rates than uninformed traders during the beginning of the trading period and have higher limit order submission rates than uninformed traders during the end of the trading period. Table 5 shows that, in Comparison 1, proprietary traders have lower limit order submission rates than foreign investors during the first hour of the trading day and have higher limit order submission rates than foreign investors during the last hour of the trading day in all methods. In addition, the results show that, in Comparison 2, institutional investors have lower limit order submission rates than foreign investors during the first hour of the trading day and have higher limit order submission rates than foreign investors during the last hour of the trading day when Methodology 1 and 2 are used. Moreover, the results show that, in Comparison 6, institutional investors have lower limit order submission rates than individual investors during the first hour of the trading day and have higher limit order submission rates than individual investors during the last hour of the trading day when Methodology 3 is used. According to Hypothesis 1.2, the results oppose the hypothesis about foreign investors since they do not have lower limit order submission rates than proprietary traders during the first hour of the trading day in all methods and do not have lower limit order submission rates than institutional investors during the first hour of the trading day in Methodology 1 and 2. Moreover, they do not have higher limit order submission rates than other investor types during the last hour of the trading day in all methods. However, the results partially support the hypothesis about individual investors since they are found to have higher limit order submission rates than other investor types during the first

hour of the trading day in all methods. However, they do not have lower limit order submission rates than foreign investors and proprietary traders during the last hour of the trading day in all methods and do not have lower limit order submission rates than institutional investors during the last hour of the trading day when Methodology 1 and 2 are used. So, the results suggest that foreign investors do not trade like informed traders and individual investors do not trade like uninformed traders in the experimental study. In fact, proprietary traders and institutional investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than foreign investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than foreign investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than individual investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than foreign investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than individual investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than individual investors according to the results when Methodology 1 and 2 are used while proprietary traders appear to be more informed than individual investors according to the results when Methodology 3 is used.



Methodology 1 Methodology 2 Methodology 3 First Hour Last Hour First Hour First Hour Last Hour Last Hour Comparison 1 53.9% Foreign Investor 78.4% 81.4% 55.3% 80.6% 58.4% **Proprietary Traders** 66.1% 58.2% 73.7% 63.0% 73.3% 62.3% 12.3%** -4.3%** 7.7%** -7.7%** 7.3%** -3.9%** Foreign - Proprietary Comparison 2 Foreign Investor 78.4% 53.9% 81.4% 55.3% 58.4% 80.6% Institutional Investors 68.8% 59.1% 67.2% 60.5% 82.6% 68.1% 9.6%** -9.7%** Foreign - Institutions -5.2%** 14.2%** -5.2%** -2.0%** Comparison 3 Foreign Investor 78.4% 53.9% 81.4% 55.3% 80.6% 58.4% Individual Investors 87.0% 60.1% 89.1% 64.9% 87.2% 65.5% -8.6%** -9.6%** -6.6%** Foreign - Individual -6.2%** -7.7%** -7.1%** Comparison 4 Proprietary Traders 66.1% 58.2% 73.7% 63.0% 73.3% 62.3% Institutional Investors 59.1% 67.2% 60.5% 68.8% 82.6% 68.1% -2.7%** -0.9%** 6.5%** -9.3%** -5.8%** Proprietary - Institutions 2.5%** Comparison 5 **Proprietary Traders** 66.1% 58.2% 73.7% 63.0% 73.3% 62.3% 87.0% 87.2% 65.5% Individual Investors 60.1% 89.1% 64.9% -1.9%** Proprietary - Individual -20.9%** -1.9%** -15.4%** -13.9%** -3.2%** Comparison 6 Institutional Investors 59.1% 67.2% 60.5% 68.1% 68.8% 82.6% Individual Investors 87.0% 60.1% 64.9% 87.2% 65.5% 89.1% Institutions - Individual -18.2%** -1.0%** -21.9%** -4.4%** -4.6%** 2.6%**

Table 5: Comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day between each pair of investor types using the data from 2009

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Methodology 1 refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Methodology 2 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rate from the number of submitted shares across all sample stocks. And Methodology 3 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rates from the number of submitted orders across all sample stocks. The intraday data from 2009 are used in the calculation. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of all pairs of investor types is computed using the t-statistics.

4.1.3. The Value of Information Effect

When the limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks are compared. Table 6 shows that the results are inconsistent across investor types and methods. The limit order submission rates of high value stocks are sometimes higher and sometimes lower than the limit order submission rates of low value stocks. The experimental study of Bloomfield et al. (2005) finds that the limit order submission rates of informed traders when they trade high value stocks are lower than the limit order submission rates when they trade low value stocks. According to Hypothesis 2, the results partially support the hypothesis since the limit order submission rates of foreign investors and institutional investors when they trade high value stocks are lower than the limit order submission rates when they trade low value stocks according to the results when Methodology 1 is used. In addition, the results show that the limit order submission rates of foreign investors when they trade high value stocks are lower than the limit order submission rates when they trade low value stocks according to the results when Methodology 2 is used. However, the results seem to oppose the hypothesis when Methodology 3 is used. The limit order submission rates of foreign investors, proprietary traders, and institutional investors when they trade high value stocks are found to be higher than the limit order submission rates when they trade low value stocks. Since the results are varied when the method used to calculate the limit order submission rate is changed, this study fails to conclude about the informativeness of each investor type when considering the value of information perspective.

Investor Type	High Value	Low Value	High Value - Low Value
Panel A: Methodology 1			
Foreign Investor	67.4%	69.5%	-2.1%**
Proprietary Traders	63.3%	61.7%	1.6%**
Institutional Investors	63.6%	65.7%	-2.1%**
Individual Investors	77.2%	77.7%	-0.5%**
Panel B: Methodology 2			
Foreign Investor	68.2%	73.2%	-5.0%**
Proprietary Traders	67.6%	63.5%	4.1%**
Institutional Investors	62.6%	63.2%	-0.6%
Individual Investors	81.1%	80.7%	0.4%
Panel C: Methodology 3		1 a	
Foreign Investor	71.8%	70.1%	1.7%**
Proprietary Traders	68.1%	65.8%	2.3%**
Institutional Investors	76.4%	74.8%	1.6%**
Individual Investors	80.2%	79.0%	1.2%**

Table 6: Comparison between the limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks of each investor type using the data from 2009

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Methodology 1 refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Methodology 2 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rate from the number of submitted shares across all sample stocks. And Methodology 3 refers to the methodology that calculates the limit order submission rates from the number of submitted orders across all sample stocks. The intraday data from 2009 are used in the calculation. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks is computed using the t-statistics.

UHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

4.1.4. Robustness Test Results

4.1.4.1. Durations used in the calculation of the limit order submission rate

The results in Table 7 and 8 suggest that the conclusions about the time of the trading day effect remain unchanged in spite of the durations used in the calculation of the limit order submission rate. The trading pattern of all investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand is still similar to the trading pattern of uninformed traders in the experimental study of Bloomfield et al. (2005). While proprietary traders and institutional investors still appear to be more informed than foreign investors according to the results when Methodology 2 is used.



Table 7: Comparison between the limit order submission rates during the first 30 minutes and during the last 30 minutes of the trading day and the comparison between the limit order submission rates during the first half and during the second half of the trading day of each investor type using the data from 2009

Panel A: Robustness Test 1.1					
Investor Type	First 30 Minute	Last 30 Minute	First 30 Minute - Last 30 Minute		
Foreign Investor	81.1%	52.3%	28.8%**		
Proprietary Traders	68.5%	58.3%	10.2%**		
Institutional Investors	68.0%	57.2%	10.8%**		
Individual Investors	89.5%	58.2%	31.3%**		
Panel B: Robustness Test 1.2					
Investor Type	First Half	Second Half	First Half - Second Half		
Foreign Investor	73.7%	57.1%	16.6%**		
Proprietary Traders	63.9%	59.0%	4.9%**		
Institutional Investors	67.7%	61.3%	6.4%**		
Individual Investors	83.1%	64.1%	19.0%**		

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. They are computed using Methodology 1 which refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Robustness Test 1.1 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the duration of 30 minutes while Robustness Test 1.2 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the duration. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day is computed using the t-statistics.

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

Table 8: Comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first 30 minutes and during the last 30 minutes of the trading day and the comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first half and during the second half of the trading day between each pair of investor types using the data from 2009

	Robustness Test 1.1		Robustne	ss Test 1.2		
	First 30 Minute Last 30 Minute		First Half	Second Half		
Comparison 1						
Foreign Investor	81.1%	52.3%	73.7%	57.1%		
Proprietary Traders	68.5%	58.3%	63.9%	59.0%		
Foreign - Proprietary	12.6%**	-6.0%**	9.8%**	-1.9%**		
Comparison 2	Comparison 2					
Foreign Investor	81.1%	52.3%	73.7%	57.1%		
Institutional Investors	68.0%	57.2%	67.7%	61.3%		
Foreign - Institutions	13.1%**	-4.9%**	6.0%**	-4.2%**		
Comparison 3		VIII -				
Foreign Investor	81.1%	52.3%	73.7%	57.1%		
Individual Investors	89.5%	58.2%	83.1%	64.1%		
Foreign - Individual	-8.4%**	-5.9%**	-9.4%**	-7.0%**		
Comparison 4						
Proprietary Traders	68.5%	58.3%	63.9%	59.0%		
Institutional Investors	68.0%	57.2%	67.7%	61.3%		
Proprietary - Institutions	0.5%	1.1%**	-3.8%**	-2.3%**		
Comparison 5						
Proprietary Traders	68.5%	58.3%	63.9%	59.0%		
Individual Investors	89.5%	58.2%	83.1%	64.1%		
Proprietary - Individual	-21.0%**	0.1%	-19.2%**	-5.1%**		
Comparison 6						
Institutional Investors	68.0%	57.2%	67.7%	61.3%		
Individual Investors	89.5%	58.2%	83.1%	64.1%		
Institutions - Individual	-21.5%**	-1.0%**	-15.4%**	-2.8%**		

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. They are computed using Methodology 1 which refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Robustness Test 1.1 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the duration of 30 minutes while Robustness Test 1.2 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the duration. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of all pairs of investor types is computed using the t-statistics.

4.1.4.2. Study periods and market conditions

When the methodology is replicated using three different study periods. The results in Table 9 suggest that the conclusions about Hypothesis 1.1 remain the same since all investor types still use more limit orders during the first hour than during the last hour of the trading day. The results in Table 10 suggest that proprietary traders and institutional investors still appear to be more informed than foreign investors. However, there are some additional findings. The results suggest that proprietary traders appear to be more informed than institutional investors during the 2007 and 2008 study periods. In addition, proprietary traders appear to be more informed than individual investors during all study periods in this robustness test. In the study of the value of information effect, according to the results in Table 11, individual investors appear to be informed traders when three additional study periods are used in the analyses. In addition, foreign investors and institutional investors appear to be informed traders when three additional study periods are used in the analyses.

จุฬาลงกรณีมหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

Investor Type	First Hour	Last Hour	First Hour - Last Hour	
Panel A: Robustness Test 2.1	·			
Foreign Investor	82.0%	56.1%	25.9%**	
Proprietary Traders	72.5%	61.3%	11.2%**	
Institutional Investors	73.3%	57.3%	16.0%**	
Individual Investors	91.2%	60.2%	31.0%**	
Panel B: Robustness Test 2.2				
Foreign Investor	80.4%	54.4%	26.0%**	
Proprietary Traders	71.0%	61.4%	9.6%**	
Institutional Investors	73.7%	57.4%	16.3%**	
Individual Investors	90.0%	59.0%	31.0%**	
Panel C: Robustness Test 2.3	. shirt 1 / 2 3	0		
Foreign Investor	77.5%	52.8%	24.7%**	
Proprietary Traders	69.3%	60.8%	8.5%**	
Institutional Investors	71.4%	58.5%	12.9%**	
Individual Investors	87.7%	59.0%	28.7%**	

Table 9: Comparison between the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of each investor type using the data from 2005 - 2008

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. They are computed using Methodology 1 which refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Robustness Test 2.1 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2005 – 2006. Robustness Test 2.2 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2007. And Robustness Test 2.3 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2008. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day is computed using the t-statistics.

GHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

6,	Robustness Test 2.1		Robustness Test 2.2		Robustness Test 2.3	
	First Hour	Last Hour	First Hour	Last Hour	First Hour	Last Hour
Comparison 1						
Foreign Investor	82.0%	56.1%	80.4%	54.4%	77.5%	52.8%
Proprietary Traders	72.5%	61.3%	71.0%	61.4%	69.3%	60.8%
Foreign - Proprietary	9.5%**	-5.2%**	9.4%**	-7.0%**	8.2%**	-8.0%**
Comparison 2	·					
Foreign Investor	82.0%	56.1%	80.4%	54.4%	77.5%	52.8%
Institutional Investors	73.3%	57.3%	73.7%	57.4%	71.4%	58.5%
Foreign - Institutions	8.7%**	-1.2%**	6.7%**	-3.0%**	6.1%**	-5.7%**
Comparison 3						
Foreign Investor	82.0%	56.1%	80.4%	54.4%	77.5%	52.8%
Individual Investors	91.2%	60.2%	90.0%	59.0%	87.7%	59.0%
Foreign - Individual	-9.2%**	-4.1%**	-9.6%**	-4.6%**	-10.2%**	-6.2%**
Comparison 4	1					
Proprietary Traders	72.5%	61.3%	71.0%	61.4%	69.3%	60.8%
Institutional Investors	73.3%	57.3%	73.7%	57.4%	71.4%	58.5%
Proprietary - Institutions	-0.8%	4.0%**	-2.7%**	4.0%**	-2.1%**	2.3%**
Comparison 5	4					
Proprietary Traders	72.5%	61.3%	71.0%	61.4%	69.3%	60.8%
Individual Investors	91.2%	60.2%	90.0%	59.0%	87.7%	59.0%
Proprietary - Individual	-18.7%**	1.1%*	-19.0%**	2.4%**	-18.4%**	1.8%**
Comparison 6	25					
Institutional Investors	73.3%	57.3%	73.7%	57.4%	71.4%	58.5%
Individual Investors	91.2%	60.2%	90.0%	59.0%	87.7%	59.0%
Institutions - Individual	-17.9%**	-2.9%**	-16.3%**	-1.6%**	-16.3%**	-0.5%

Table 10: Comparison of the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day between each pair of investor types using the data from 2005 - 2008

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. They are computed using Methodology 1 which refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Robustness Test 2.1 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2005 – 2006. Robustness Test 2.2 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2007. And Robustness Test 2.3 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2008. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day of all pairs of investor types is computed using the t-statistics.

Investor Type	High Value	Low Value	High Value - Low Value	
Panel A: Robustness Test 2.1	-			
Foreign Investor	69.3%	71.1%	-1.8%**	
Proprietary Traders	68.3%	63.4%	4.9%**	
Institutional Investors	65.4%	66.7%	-1.3%**	
Individual Investors	80.6%	81.4%	-0.8%**	
Panel B: Robustness Test 2.2	-			
Foreign Investor	69.0%	69.3%	-0.3%	
Proprietary Traders	65.1%	63.0%	2.1%**	
Institutional Investors	66.3%	66.4%	-0.1%	
Individual Investors	79.8%	80.9%	-1.1%**	
Panel C: Robustness Test 2.3	1111111	a		
Foreign Investor	65.4%	65.9%	-0.5%	
Proprietary Traders	66.1%	64.8%	1.3%**	
Institutional Investors	65.5%	64.7%	0.8%	
Individual Investors	76.8%	78.3%	-1.5%**	

Table 11: Comparison between the limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks of each investor type using the data from 2005 - 2008

Note: This table reports the limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks of 4 investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. They are computed using Methodology 1 which refers to the methodology that initially calculates the limit order submission rate of each sample stock by the number of submitted shares, and then calculates the cross-sectional limit order submission rate based on the limit order submission rate of each sample stock. Robustness Test 2.1 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2005 – 2006. Robustness Test 2.2 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2007. And Robustness Test 2.3 refers to the limit order submission rates calculated using the data from 2008. The significance of the differences between limit order submission rates of high and low value stocks is computed using the t-statistics.

Ghulalongkorn University

4.2. Discussion

One should not expect that there are only informed or uninformed traders in any investor types. So, this study try to find that either informed traders or uninformed traders are the major investors in each investor type.

In the first part of the methodology, the informativeness of each investor type is investigated using the difference between the limit order submission rates during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day. All investor types are found to use more limit orders during the first hour than during the last hour of the trading day. This trading strategy is similar to the strategy of uninformed traders in the experimental study. This finding is robust to the change in methods and durations used in the calculation of the limit order submission rate. Moreover, it is also robust to the change in market conditions. So, this study concludes that all investor types in the Stock Exchange of Thailand are dominated by uninformed traders.

In the second part of the methodology, the limit order submission rates of each investor type are compared with the limit order submission rates of other investor types to find that which investor type has a relatively lower proportion of uninformed traders. Foreign investors are expected to trade like informed traders while individual investors are expected to trade like uninformed traders in the experimental study. However, the results show that proprietary traders and institutional investors use less limit orders than foreign investor during the first hour of the trading day and use more limit orders than foreign investor during the last hour of the trading day. These results indicate that proprietary traders and institutional investors appear to have less proportion of uninformed traders than foreign investors. In addition, the robustness test suggests that proprietary traders appear to have lower proportions of uninformed traders than both institutional investors and individual investors when the methodology is done in other market conditions. However, these results are not robust to the change in the durations used to calculate the limit order submission rate.

In the third part of the methodology, the limit order submission rates of each investor type when they trade high and low value stocks are compared. The results show that foreign investors, institutional investors, and individual investors are three investor types that trade like informed traders when Methodology 1 is used, foreign investors is the only investor type that trades like informed traders when Methodology 2 is used, and there is no investor type that trades like informed traders when Methodology 3 is used. So, this study cannot conclude about the informativeness of each investor type when considering the value of information perspective.

This study uses the experimental findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005) as an alternative method to identify informed and uninformed traders in the actual stock market. The similarity between the experimental market settings and the actual market settings is important. This study has to design the methodology to be similar to the experimental market as much as possible to make the proper inferences. For example, this study does not use the same definition of the limit order submission rate as the experimental market due to the different market settings. In the experimental market, the effect of the order size is controlled by setting every order to be equal to one share. In the actual stock market, the effect of the order size is not controlled. As a result, this study has three methods to calculate the limit order submission rate to control the effect of the order size.

The duration of the private information is another factor that has to be controlled. In the experimental market, informed traders have 120 seconds to capitalize on their private information before the trading period is over and the information is revealed to the public. In the actual market, it is difficult to define the duration of the private information.

The duration of one trading day is used in this study. It can be viewed in two aspects. In the first aspect, the private information of informed traders is assumed to be short-lived and revealed at the end of every trading day. This assumption seems to be too restrictive. In the second aspect, the private information of informed traders is considered to be long-lived, but the value of the private information is assumed to decrease with time. With this assumption, there is a room for the duration of the private information to be varied while the results remain correct. When the value of the information is decreasing, the limit order submission rate of informed traders is expected to be increasing. The limit order submission rates of informed traders during the first hour of the trading day are expected to be lower than the limit order submission rates during the last hour of the trading day every day until the information is disclosed to the public. The aggregate differences between the limit order submission rate during the first hour and during the last hour of the trading day during this period can be used to represent the value of the private information.

When the duration of the private information is considered in the second aspect, the similarity between the experimental market setting and the actual market setting has been maintained. However, it can be violated if the information event occurs during the trading day. There is a chance that the value of the private information during the first hour of the trading day is lower than the value of the private information during the last hour of the trading day if there is an information event occurs during the trading day. So, this study has to assume that there is no information event occurs during the trading day. This assumption is quite consistent with the data from the Stock Exchange of Thailand since most of the company announcements take place either before the market opens in the morning or after the market closes in the afternoon.

In the study of the value of information, however, it is a lot more difficult to imitate the experimental market settings. In the experimental market, there is only one stock traded in the market. The expected final price of the stock is constant at 25 laboratory dollars while the final price is limited between 0-50 laboratory dollars. The actual market settings are more complicated than the experimental market settings. There is more than one stock traded in the market. These stocks have different trading prices. Their prices can increase or decrease up to 30% of their previous closing prices in general. As a result, this study cannot measure the value of the information as the difference between the expected final price and the final price as the experimental study does. The opening price is used instead of the expected final price and the closing price is used instead of the final price. With these substitutions, the assumptions used in the study of the value of information effect become more restrictive than those used in the study of the time of the day effect. When the opening and closing prices are used, the duration of the private information has to be considered as the first aspect. Since the high and low value stocks are recalculated every trading day, the duration of the information is assumed to be one trading day. In fact, there is a chance that the duration of the information is longer than one day. Some traders may gradually trade the target stock throughout a few days after obtaining the information while some traders may set

the target price and traded only at or below this specific price. The restrictive assumption about the duration of the private information and complicated trading strategies of traders in the actual stock market are the limitations of this study.



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSIONS

In the economics of information, the concept of information asymmetry has been studied widely. It deals with the situation when one party to the transaction has more relevant information than the other parties or has the relevant information that other parties do not have. To study the problem of information asymmetry in the stock market, trading strategies of informed and uninformed traders have been investigated. However, researchers cannot identify informed and uninformed traders explicitly in actual stock markets. So, the trading performance method has been applied to classify traders. Traders who have better trading performances are classified as informed traders and those who have worse trading are classified as uninformed traders. In the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), the prior results are found to be inconsistent. The conclusions are contrary when different study periods and investment holding periods are used.

Chulalongkorn University

This study uses the experimental findings of Bloomfield et al. (2005) as an alternative method to classify informed and uninformed traders in SET. The result shows that all investor types use more limit orders during the beginning of the trading period and change to use more market orders during the end of the trading day. This order strategy is similar to the order strategy of uninformed traders in Bloomfield et al. (2005). So, this study concludes that all investor types in SET are dominated by uninformed traders.

Further analyses emphasize on the relative use of limit and market orders among investor types. Bloomfield et al. (2005) find that informed traders use more market orders than uninformed traders during the beginning of the trading period and use more limit orders than uninformed traders during the end of the trading period. In SET, proprietary traders and institutional investors are found to use more market orders than foreign investors during the beginning of the trading day and use more limit orders during the end of the trading day. This result indicates that proprietary traders and institutional investors of uninformed traders than foreign investors in SET.

In the study of the value of information, Bloomfield et al. (2005) find that informed traders use more market orders when they trade high value stocks and use more limit orders when they trade low value stocks. However, the analysis on the value of information in this study provides an inconclusive result.

Finally, two robustness tests are conducted. First, the durations of 30 minutes and half a trading day are used instead of the duration of one hour in the calculation of the limit order submission rate. Second, the same methodology is used in three additional study periods, which represent three different market conditions. Under the two robustness tests, the overall results remain unchanged.

REFERENCES

- Akerlof, G. A. (1970). The market for 'lemons': Quality uncertainty and the market mechanism. *Quarterly Journal of Economics*, 84(3), 488-500.
- Anand, A., Chakravarty, S., & Martell, T. (2005). Empirical evidence on the evolution of liquidity: Choice of market versus limit orders by informed and uninformed traders. *Journal of Financial Markets*, 8(3), 288-308.
- Bae, K.-h., Yamada, T., & Ito, K. (2006). How do individual, institutional, and foreign investors win and lose in equity trades? : Evidence from Japan. *International Review of Finance*, 6(3), 129-155.
- Barber, B. M., Lee, Y.-T., Liu, Y.-J., & Odean, T. (2009). Just how much do individual investors lose by trading? *Review of Financial Studies*, 22(2), 609-632.
- Barber, B. M., & Odean, T. (2000). Trading is hazardous to your wealth: The common stock investment performance of individual investors. *Journal of Finance*, 55(2), 773-806.
- Bloomfield, R., & Anderson, A. (2010). Experimental finance. Johnson School Research Paper, 23(1), 1-21.
- Bloomfield, R., O'Hara, M., & Saar, G. (2005). The "make or take" decision in an electronic market: Evidence on the evolution of liquidity. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 75(1), 165-199.
- Boonvorachote, T., & Panyawattananon, S. (2012). Noise trading behavior analysis in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. *Kasetsart Journal: Social Sciences*, 33(1), 79-91.
- Choe, H., Kho, B.-C., & Stulz, R. M. (2005). Do domestic investors have an edge? The trading experience of foreign investors in Korea. *Review of Financial Studies*, *18*(3), 795-829.
- Cohen, K. J., Maier, S. F., Schwartz, R. A., & Whitcomb, D. K. (1981). Transaction costs, order placement strategy, and existence of the bid-ask spread. *Journal of Political Economy*, 89(2), 287-305.
- Cohen, R. B., Gompers, P. A., & Vuolteenaho, T. (2002). Who underreacts to cashflow news? Evidence from trading between individuals and institutions. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 66(2–3), 409-462.

- Duong, H. N., Kalev, P. S., & Krishnamurti, C. (2009). Order aggressiveness of institutional and individual investors. *Pacific-Basin Finance Journal*, 17(5), 533-546.
- Dvorak, T. (2005). Do domestic investors have an information advantage? Evidence from Indonesia *Journal of Finance*, *60*(2), 817-839.
- Ellul, A., Holden, C. W., Jain, P., & Jennings, R. (2007). Order dynamics: Recent evidence from the NYSE. *Journal of Empirical Finance*, 14(5), 636-661.
- Froot, K. A., & Ramadorai, T. (2008). Institutional portfolio flows and international investments. *Review of Financial Studies*, 21(2), 937-971.
- Glosten, L. R. (1994). Is the electronic open limit order book inevitable? *Journal of Finance*, 49(4), 1127-1161.
- Grinblatt, M., & Keloharju, M. (2000). The investment behavior and performance of various investor types: A study of Finland's unique data set. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 55(1), 43-67.
- Grossman, S. J., & Stiglitz, J. E. (1980). On the impossibility of informationally efficient markets. *American Economic Review*, 70(3), 393-408.
- Harris, L. E. (1998). Optimal dynamic order submission strategies in some stylized trading problems. *Financial markets, institutions and instruments,* 7(2), 1-75.
- Kamesaka, A., Nofsinger, J. R., & Kawakita, H. (2003). Investment patterns and performance of investor groups in Japan. *Pacific-Basin Finance Journal*, 11(1), 1-22.
- Kaniel, R., & Liu, H. (2006). So what orders do informed traders use? *Journal of Business*, 79(4), 1867-1914.
- Phansatan, S., Powell, J. G., Tanthanongsakkun, S., & Treepongkaruna, S. (2012). Investor type trading behavior and trade performance: Evidence from the Thai stock market. *Pacific-Basin Finance Journal*, 20(1), 1-23.
- Seppi, D. J. (1997). Liquidity provision with limit orders and a strategic specialist. *Review of Financial Studies*, *10*(1), 103-150.
- Stiglitz, J. E. (1987). The causes and consequences of the dependence of quality on price. *Journal of Economic Literature*, 25(1), 1-48.

- Stiglitz, J. E. (2000). The Contributions of the Economics of Information to Twentieth Century Economics. *Quarterly Journal of Economics*, 115(4), 1441-1478.
- Taechapiroontong, N., & Suecharoenkit, P. (2011). Trading performance of individual, institutional, and foreign investors: Evidence from the Stock Exchange of Thailand. *International Research Journal of Finance and Economics*, 75(1), 157-174.
- Vickrey, W. (1961). Counterspeculation, auctions, and competitive sealed tenders. *Journal of Finance*, *16*(1), 8-37.



จุฬาลงกรณมหาวทยาลย Chulalongkorn University





จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

VITA

Natthaphong Kittisumeta was born on December 9, 1988. He received the Bachelor of Engineering, major in Chemical Engineering, from Chulalongkorn University in 2011. He started studying the Master of Science, major in Finance, at Chulalongkorn Business School in 2012. His areas of interest include market microstructure, behavioral finance, and financial economics.



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University